STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lori A. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Interim Commissicner 603-271-9544  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544
Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-808-735-2964 www.dkhs.nh.gov
Katja 8. Fox
Director

June 14, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs, to enter into a Sole Source
contract with the Foundation for Healthy Communities (VC#154533-B001), Concord, NH, in the
amount of $550,000 to manage and disburse unmet needs funding to the NH Doorways for
alcohol-related and other non-SOR eligible, supports and services, effective upon Governor and
Council approval through June 30, 2024. 100% Other Funds (Governor's Commission).

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2024,
with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State Class /
Fiscal Year Adtomt Class Title Job Number Total Amount
2024 | 102-500731 C°“"a°‘ssf3; Program | = 55058501 $550,000
Subtotal $550,000
EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is responding to a funding directive
from the Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Other Drugs (Commission). This Contractor has
unique experience and qualifications to facilitate the administration of funding to the State's nine
Doorways to support clients presenting with substance use disorders (SUD), including alcohol
use disorder (AUD), excluding opioid use disorder and/or stimulant use disorder (OUD/StimUD),
which are not covered by the State Opioid Response (SOR) funding. The Commission
recommended and approved the funding allocation for this agreement. The Department carries
out the administrative functions of the Commission in accordance with RSA 12-J.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Contractor to administer funding for SUD
including AUD, non-OUD/StimUD related services, or unmet needs, which, according to the New
Hampshire Medical Society, have increased and contribute to a number of heaith conditions and
are not covered by other federal funding. The Contractor will provide support to the Doorways to
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fund and help facilitate the initiative as it pertains to non-SOR eligible supports and services. The
Doorways provide access to treatment, support, and resources for people with SUD. The
supports and services include but are not limited to medications for opicid use disorder, peer
recovery support services, access to recovery and respite housing, evidence-based prevention
programs, and coordination of transportation to and from recovery-related medical appointments
and other treatment programs.

The SCR funding, which provides the basis of the Doorway funding, is restricted to being
utilized for people with OQUD and StimUD and related services. Therefore, individuals with other
SUDs, including AUD, cannot be assisted through SOR funding. This request will allow people
with other SUDs to be supported. Approximately 1,200 individuals will be served during State
Fiscal Year 2024. :

The Department will monitor services through the monthly review of invoices and

submitted, supporting documentation.

. Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the avallablhty to address the
needs of these vital services that are not covered by other federal or state funding will be limited, -
and residents in most areas of the State may not receive appropriate treatment for alcohol misuse,
resulting in heightened risk of decline in health conditions, increase in alcohol-induced deaths,
financial and emotional strains on families, and related economic and resource challenges in
. communities.

Area served: Statevwde

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer avallable additiona! General Funds
will not be requested to support this program. In the event that the Other Funds become no longer
available, additional General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver
Interim Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Subject: $5-2024-DBH-19-UNMET-01

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12!11f2019)

Unmet Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol-related Supports and Services

Notice: This agreement and all of its atachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to'in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Han;pshirc Departr'ng:nl of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Foundation for Healthy Communities

1.4 Contractor Address
125 -Airport Rd, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account-Number
Number
' 05-95-92-920510-

603-225-0500 33820000-102-500731

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

6/30/2024 $550,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

6/14/2023

a S. Fo'y_'

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor S:gnatory
DocuSigned by: Peter Aames
% Date: ‘ Executive Director
1.13 State Agency Slgnaturc 6/15/2023 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
DocuSigned by: i Katja S. FOx
Date:

Director

1,15

By:

Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

1.16

DocuSignad by:

By: ﬁbnjm Qmﬁm

Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substancc and Execution) {7/ apphcab!e)

On: 6/15/2023

G&C Item number: -

Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3

_(“Contractor™) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the

work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly

described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated .

herein by reference (“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the ‘approval of the Governor and
Executive Council 6f the Staie of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the

Effective Date, ali Services performed by the Contractor prior to

the Effective Date shall be. performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor - for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete alt Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7. '

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any ' provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are

" contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of

funds affected by any state or federat legislative or executive

action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the -

dppropriation or availability of fundlng for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event,of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the-right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon

‘giving the Contractor notice of such' reduction or termination. .

The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account ldenuﬁcd in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are rcduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PR[CE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EM-IIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
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compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts

- otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those

liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80.7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the

" Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal

employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monics of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations. -
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws. _

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Coniractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and condmons of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL. -

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that:
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized (10 do so under all applicable laws. '

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six {(6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and .
shall not ‘permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to-
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’'s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials

Date
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™).

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule; )
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hercunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Statc may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not umcly cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 gwe the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defaull and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor; '

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both,

8.3. No failure by the State-to enforce any provis'ions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and

all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of -

Default on the part.of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole .
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or -

in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the Siate is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report {"Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract. price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall

" be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached .

EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word *“data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained.during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of], this
Agreement, including, but not limited 1o, all studies, repors,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computcr printouts, notes, -
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whcther
finished or unfinished.

190.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Siate or purchased with funds provided for that purpose -
under this Agreement, shatl be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this.Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
pr:or written approval of the State

11, CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In thc
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to .
bind the State or receive any benefits. workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. -

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifleen (15) days prior to,
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Contrdl shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,

_ consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in

which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the

- direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the

voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b} the sale of all or substanllally all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State. |
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement 1o which it is not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION, Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which

. may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omisgion®Pkf the
Page 3 of 4 [ 74
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intenticnal conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed 1o constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. l\‘SURAl\CE

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and’

continuously maintain in force, and shall require any

subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the

following insurance:
- 14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
“or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all propeny
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement valie of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
" on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
‘of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depariment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers ficensed in the State of New Hampshire,

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracung Officer
identified.in block 1.9, or his or her successor; a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements ofN H. RSA chapter 281-A ("'Workers’
Compensation").

15:2 To the extent the Comraclor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers’ Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers’
" Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Waorkers’
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contracior,

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed 10 have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,

~waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
* the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required

under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreied and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording -
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof. '

19, CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

. between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT

A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A} shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein.
shall in no way be held to.explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meanmg of the provisions of lhlS
Agreement. '

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated.
herein by reference. :

23. SEVERABILITY. In theevent any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.. '

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding betwecn the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and uniderstandings with respect Lo the subject matter

‘which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire hereof.
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.
- - 03 !
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Unmet Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol-Related Supports

and Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Pa'ragra‘ph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to th'e same contractual conditions as the

Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written

‘agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,

and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.  Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontracter’s performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

. 1 ’ %
§8-2024-DBH-19-UNMET-01 4 A-1.2 Conlraclor Initials L

Foundation for Healthy Communities ‘ ' 6/14/202 3

_ Pagetoft Date



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 692670A8-267D-40EC-95DA-CA197FEQIF12

New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Unmet Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol-Related Supports
and Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.14.

1.2.
1.3.

1.4.

- The Contractor must administer, disburse, and provide invoice management of

Unmet Needs Funds (UNF) for supports and services, as identified, authorized,
and requested by the NH Doorways (Doorways). The Contractor must ensure

1.1.2.

"~ funding is:
1.1.1.

Available for services provided to individuals with a history, current
diagnosis, or who are at risk of developing substance use disorders
(SUDs), excluding Opioid Use Disorder and/or Stimulant Use
Disorder.

Not available for services otherwise covered through State Opioid
Response (SOR) federal grant funding administered through the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Admlnlstratlon
(SAMHSA).

The Contractor must ensure services are avaitable to all Doorways

For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

The Contractor must ensure funding is only provided for the provision of
approved SUD non-SOR-related UNF supports and services which include, but
are not limited to: .

1.4.1.
1.4.2

1.4.3.

1.4.4,

Payment of treatment costs necessary to remove financial barriers.

Transportation to and from recovery-related medical appointments,
treatment programs, and other locations that assist the individual with
recovery.

‘Childcare that permits an individual, who is a parent or caregiver, to

attend recovery-related medical appointments, treatment programs,
and other appointments.

_Payment of housing costs necessary to remove financial barriers to

obtaining or retaining safe hoéusing, including, but not limited to:
1.4.4.1. Respite shelter. '

1.4.4.2. Resources for. individuals while awaiting treatment and
recovery services when care is not yet available. :

1.4.4.3. Recovery housing, provided by recovery residences that are
located and certified, in New Hampshire, to meet National
Alliance for Recovery Residences (NARR) standards and are
listed on the New Hampshire Recovery House Registry in

(7,
$55-2024-DBH-19-UNMET-01 B-20 Contractor Initials
D
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Unmet Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol- Related Supports
and Services

. EXHIBIT B

accordance with current New Hampshire Adminiétrative
Rules..

1.4.4.4. Other short-term costs, as |dent|f‘ed and authorized by the,
: Doorway.

1.4.4.5. The provision of clothing and/or toﬂetnes approprlate for cold
weather, job interviews, or work;

1.4.4.6. Gift and/or gas cards, in an amount not to exceed $20 per
"~ card, for use to purchase necessary items at- locations
including, but not limited to:

1.4.4.6.1. Gas stations.
1.4.4.6.2. Drug stores.
1.4.4.:6.3. Departmént stores.
1.4.464. Thriftstores..

1.4.4.7. Other treatment services as identified and authorized by the
Doorway and as approved, in writing, by the Department.

1.5. The Contractor must ensure funding is paid directly to the Doorway requesting
reimbursement for actual expenses incurred.

1.6. The Contractor must maintain records and acc:ounts of all costs associated with
UNF SUD-related supports and services. The Contractor must ensure
documentation includes, but is not limited to:

1.6.1. - Date of expense.

1.6.2. Requesiing Doorway.

1.6.3. Aggregate client demographic data.
1.6.4. Type of service provided.

1.6.5. Name of service provider used.
1.6.6. Cost of service.

1.6.7. Form of payment.

16.8. Date paid.

1.6.9. Proof of payment from ‘Doorway mcludmg all receipts, invoices, and
bills.

1 6 10. Beginning and remaining balance of funds.

-1.7. -The Contractor must participate in program monitoring activities and fscal
reviews on a bi-monthly, or otherwise requested by the Department.

(7
| §5-2024-DBH-19-UNMET-01 B-2.0 . Contractor tnilials

) . . 6/14/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Unmet Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol-Related Supports
and Services ;

EXHIBIT B

2. Reporting

~2.1.  The Contractor must provide the Department with aggregate non-identifiable
data that supports the Contract deliverables.

2.2 _The Contractor must ensure aggregate and de-identified data excludes
information that would allow for the constructive identification of any individual,
‘meaning that there is no reasonable basis to believe that the data could be
used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available information, by
an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of the -
information.

2.3.  The Contractor must submit monthly reports, on the 15" working day of the

‘following month, of all costs associated with UNF supports and services, to the

. Department, in a format specified by the Department. The Contractor must
ensure each report includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.1. '~ Aggregate listing of expenses reimbursed broken out by:
23.11. DoorWay.
2.3.1.2.  Type of service provided.
2.3.1.3. Name of service provider used.
2.3.1.4. Cost of service.
2.3.1.5.  Number of individuals receiving services.
2.3.1.6. Aggregate client demographic data.

2.3.2. Beginning and remaining balance of funds.

2.3.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other data and metrics to
the Department in a format specified by the Department.

3. Exhibits Incorporated

3.1. The Contractor must use and dlsclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
- Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
‘accordance with the attached Exhibit |, Business Associate Agreement, which

has been executed by the parties.

3.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

.3.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

A
55-2024-DBH-19-UNMET-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials L
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Unmet Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol-Related Supports
and Services

EXHIBIT B

4. Additional Terms _
4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

41.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
' described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve

compliance therewith. '

4.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

4.2.1. The Contractor-must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication, access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals -with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low VISIOn and individuals who
have speech challenges.

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other

; materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, “The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.”

4.32. Al materlals produced or purchased'under the Agréement must have
prior approval from- the Department before printing;: production,
distribution or use.

4'.3.3. - The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and aII
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

4.3.3.1. Brochures.
4.3.3.2. Resource directories.
4.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
43.3.4. Posters.
4335 Reports. :
'4.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced urdzﬁie

$8-2024-DBH-19-UNMET-01 B-2.0 Conlraclor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Unmet Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol-Related Supports
and Services :

EXHIBIT B

Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.
5. Records . ' -
5.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or coliected by the Contractor. '

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accountlng
* procedures and practices, which suffi iciently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original -
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
" requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or requnred by
the Department.

.5.2.  During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

5.3. If, upon review of the Final Expendlture Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

; ’n?s
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Unmet Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol-related
Supports and Services

EXHIBIT C

Pavmen‘t‘Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:
1.1. 100% Other funds (Governor's Commission).
2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Départment has identified:
2.1, The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfilment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget.

4. - The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice: :

4.1, Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon reglstermg with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. s submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department. -

'4.3. |dentifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

44. Includes éupborting-documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting.
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an électrdnic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs dbhinvoicesbdas@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to'the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

§5-2024-DBH-19-UNME T-01 J - C-20 . Contractor Initials L
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Unmet Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol-related
Supports and Services

EXHIBIT C

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified- in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor-and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. '

8. Audits

.8.1.The Contractor.must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single

’ Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart ‘F of the Uniform
Administrative = Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards. '

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall - submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corréctive action plan.

| .
85-2024-DBH-19-UNMET-01 Cc-20 Contractor Initials :
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Unmet'Needs Fund Management and Disbursement for Alcohol-related
Supports and Services

EXHIBIT.C

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C existé, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the -
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception. '

DS
o (F%
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-1 SS-2024-DBH-1.9-UNMET-O1
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.
Contractor Name: Foundations for Healthy Cormnmunities
'Budget' Request for: Unmel Needs Funding Administration for NH Doorways
Budget Period SFY24 July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 15.00%
Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS
1. Salary & Wages $10,000
2. Fringe Benefits = . $0
3. Consultants : $0
4, Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 $0
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab 30
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0
5.(d) Supplies - Medical 30
5.(e} Supplies Office ' $0
6. Travel ' $o
7. Software $0
8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications : - $0
8. (b) Other - Education and Training . $0
8. (c) Other - Other {specify below)

8. (d) Other-Audit Expenses . . ] $5,000
Qther {pleasa spsecify) - $0
Other (please specify) i $0
Other (please specify) ; : $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $463,261
Total Direct Costs $478,261

Total Indirect Costs|’ $71,739|
TOTAL $550,000

[ Z
6/14/2023
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New Hampshlre Department of Health’and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as |dentlﬁed in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIV.E | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

_ This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,

' 1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the' May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The cettificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant: False
-certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or,
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: ‘ '

Commissioner . ;
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

- Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1, Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, dlstnbutlon
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such

: prohibition; .

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace,

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
ocecurring in the workplace;

1.3 Makung it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condmon of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conwctlon for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than fIVE calendar days after such
conviction,

1.5.- Notifying the agency in wrmng, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federangsagency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free "Vendor tnitials "
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has demgnated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
_identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
: subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satlsfactorlly in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;,
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3, 1.4, 1.5 and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sute (s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communities

DocuSigned by:

Ftr

Date ) Name: PEter Ames
Title:

6/14/2023

Executive Director

T . 3 b?s
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Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 11.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identifted in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Cerification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Sacial Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Titte IV

The undersigned cerifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing dr attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or -
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperatlve agreement {and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor)

2. Ifany funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or enteréd into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering inte this.
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10 000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: rFoundation for Healthy Communities

DecuSigned by:

6/14/2023 : %
Date . Jainie’ Peter Ames
Title:

Executive Director

’ “ %
Exhibit € — Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials L
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's :
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary pammpant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction. i

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If itis later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
" that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become errcneous by reason of changed
circumstances.
5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred," “suspended,” "mellglble * “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitling this proposal (contract) that, should the -
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared. ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation'in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. - The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
-clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or invaluntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded ‘parties).

9. Nothmg contamed in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records

in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andl ?:7 14

Exhibit F = Certification Regard:ng Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
. And Other Responsibility Matters 6/14/2023
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] _ Exhibit F

10.

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. ;

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph & of these instructions, if a participantin a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is

_ suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in

addition to other remedies available to the Federa! government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

"

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11.

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency,

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them. for commission of fraud or a criminal. offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) -
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property,

" 11.3. arenot presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity

12.

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this apphcatlonlproposal had one or mare publlc
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to ceify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13

14.

By sugmng and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier pamccpant as

- defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable-to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanatlon to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tuer participant further agrees by submlttlng this proposal (contract) that it wnll
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all Iower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communities

DocuSigned by:

6/14/2023 éxé’ﬁ,_—

Date - ame, Ames

Title: ) o
i Executive Director

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor IniﬁalsL
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: ' ' '

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the detivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justiceé Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; ‘

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964.(42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity),

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 {28'U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures-equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07); which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs), 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Palicies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; _ :

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 {U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the-grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment. :
4 ) b1
Exhibit G l ?’4
. ) Contractor Initials
~ Certificalion of Compliance with requi periaining Lo Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Traatment of Faith-Basad Organizations
£ and Whistablower protections
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_In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
-discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Depaitment of Health and Human Services, and -
to the Department of Health and Hurnan Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communities

DocuSignad by: °
6/14/2023 %
Date ) Name: Peter Ames
i Title:

Executive Director

' ' 0§
3 Exhibit G ' : | ?74
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with requirements pemunmg to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal T(enlmanl of Faith-Basad Organizations
protections .
627114 : . 6/14/2023
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1884
{Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant; contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section1.3 of the Geneéral Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: i
& By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name: Foundation for-Hea1thy Communities

.. g - . DocuSigned by: 3
6/14/2023 (%
Date : Name. Poter Ames

' Title: -

Executive Director -

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials 2
: Environmental Tobacco Smoke 6/14/2023
CUDHHSM10713 Page 1 of 1 i te
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
- BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(&))] ‘Definitions. _
~a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160. 103 of Tltle 45, Code
of Federal Regulatlons

c. “Covered Entity" has the meanlng given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45
Code of Federal Regulatlons

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meanlng as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Sectlon 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
-in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
. Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the'’American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Ihsurance Portability and Accbuniability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meéning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(qg). ;

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden‘tiﬁab.le Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services. ;

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv@

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

32014 Exhibit| . Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement | ) 6/14/2023
Page 106
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‘Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean thé Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

"'Secunm Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredlted by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning

"established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the

(2)

HITECH
Act.

Business Asscciate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: '
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
L. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
ll. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity. -

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and {ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in responsetoa
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the dlsclosure and
to seek appropfiate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi e?j 74

32014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials

Health Insurance Portability Act
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(3)

32014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. . :

.If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to

be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such addltlonal restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notlfy the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected

-health information not provided for by the Agreement-including breaches of unsecured

protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entlty

The Business Assomate shall |mmed|ately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be

' Ilmlted to:

o. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the -
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;
o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the -
_ disclosure was made;
o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed .
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated. '

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48' hou'rs of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the I'ISk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entlty

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Ngtification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its-internal policies and procedures, books

_and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or

received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHi as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business afsggiate

agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivi

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement : ' 6/14/2023
Page 3 of 6
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine

. Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

3/2014

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. '

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entlty to fulfill its
obllgatlons under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI i in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available -
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR

"Section 164.528.

_ In'the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI

directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered.Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th s
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as'Businessl 74

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 6/14/2023
Page 4 of 6 Date



1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 69267DA8-2670-40EC-950A-CA197FEQ3F 12

. New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

'Exhibit |

4)

+{5)

(6}

32014

Associate maintains such PHL. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certlfy to

Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its

Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520 to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI. .

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuanl to 45 CFR Section
164 506 or 45 CFR Section 164 508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or,
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI. ' '

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate '
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity.for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

‘Miscellaneous

. Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms.used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended. .

Amendment. Covered Entity and-Business Associate agree to take such action as is .
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

. Interpretation. The parties agree _th.at any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r@

, Exhibit | | Contractor Inltials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 6/14/2023
Date
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e. _  Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3} |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the A
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |.

Department of Health and Human Services Foundation for Healthy Communities
tat@sy: : sagsifibe Contractor

2§ Fop ’jﬁgiéf'zi___

Signature of Authorized Representative  Signature of Authorized Representative

Katja S. Fox Peter Ames

Name of Authonzed Representatlve Name of Authorized Representative

Director J .
_ _ Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/15/2023 - - 6/1472023

Date Date -

312014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials

"Health Insurance Portability Act
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA] COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual -
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award'is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over .
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reperting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information}), the
Department of Health and Human Services {DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Narme of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts { CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compeénsation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2ODNOOAWN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of thé General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sechons 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all appllcabie provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Foundation for Healthy Communities

. ; : DocuSigned by.
6/14/2023 l ’;Egié’fzf___-
Date . : _ ' Name: fes

Title:  gxecutive pirector

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federa! Funding Contractor Inttiab[—

Accountabllity And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 6/14/2023
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FORM A"

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate. :

1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is: PEUKNCARNQES

2. . In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, andfor cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements? '

X ___NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
i

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your.
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NOQ, please answer the following:

4, The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor InitialsL

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 6/14/2023
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

- A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. *“Breach®” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other ‘than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information

* disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case - Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Inforimation.

Confidential Information aiso includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCl), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User” means any person or entity {e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
_DHHS data or denvatwe data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountablllty Act of 1996 and the
regulatlons promulgated thereunder. . - :

6. “Incident” means an act that potenhally violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its- data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software- characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

| #
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. -

“Open. Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open

. network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, '

10.
. definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

1.

12.

PHI or confidential DHHS data.”

"Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be uséd to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their.name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,”

“alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked

or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

‘Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
160.103.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments:
thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information™ means Protected .Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is

developed or endorsed by a standards developing orgamzatlon that is accredited by -

the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. .Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1.

2.

The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a wolataon
of the Privacy and Security Rule. -

The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. Last update 10/08/18 Exhibit K : Contractor Initials
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“request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by 'Iaw in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure:

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by addltlonal

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
‘pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. .

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

‘any other purposes that are not mdlcated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized représentatives

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this °
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

R

Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. .

Computer Disks and Portable Storagé Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS .
data.’

Encrypted Email. End User may only employ eméil to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be.
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

Filé Hosting‘Services,_also known aé. File Sharing Sites. End User rﬁay not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

Ground Mail Service. End User may onIyI transmit Confidential Data via certified ground

- mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may' not transmit Confidential Data via an opeh

i - , :n?s'
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10.

11,

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication 'to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or Iaptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to -prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

"be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i. e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24

hours).

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS:

- The Contractor will only retain the data and ény derivative of the data for the duration of this

Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: |

A

Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabllltles and mcludes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring ciapabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that-can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. . The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard coples of Confi dentlal Data .
in a secure location ‘and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

. 7 £ y %
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- whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State’s
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disastér
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

sanitization,. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines

for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.

Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at

time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department

upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to

demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,

regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly

evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. 'Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confi dentlal Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confi dential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1, The Contractor will maintain proper securi'ty controls o protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will malntam policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where apphcable (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data {i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.}.

3 : [%
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The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to

‘contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information

where applicable.

The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities aré in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services. for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an_ internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum .
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies

- and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of

10.

11.

V5. Last update 10/09/18 . Exhibit K Contraclor Initials

obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

If the Department determines the Contractor is a Busmess Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for malntalnlng compliance with the
agreement.

The Contractor_ will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data_ offshore or-outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

DHHS Information
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FE2

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less

" than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,

13.

14.

15.

16.

but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health

information and as applicable under State law.

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the leve!l and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of information Technology policies, gwdellnes standards, and.
procurement information reIatlng to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and mcndent
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of ‘any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer’
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential . Data obtained. under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

C. énsure that laptops and other electronic' devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Informatlon only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by emall addresses of -persons authorized to
recelve such information.

| 7,
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door Iocks card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identiftable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. ih all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a rlsk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
“a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this -
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,

and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section Vi.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor’s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

Identify InC|dents

=N

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
. 3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37,
4. ldentify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
&3
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear coests associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation

measures.

Incidents and:for Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer: .
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

(#
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State .

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire. do hereby certify that FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY
COMMUNITIES is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Octeber 28,
1968. | further certify that ali fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s oftice have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business [D: 63943
Centificate Number: 0005780289

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause (o be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 19th day of May A.D. 2022,

David M..Scanlan

Secretary of Siate
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

[, Stephen Ahnen, of the Foundation for Healthy Communities, do hereby certify that:

1. 1am the duly elected Secretary/Treasurer of the Foundation for Healthy Communities;

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted by action of unanimous consent
of the Board of Directors of the Foundation Healthy Communities, duly adopted on October
18,2021, '

RESOLVED: That this corporation, the Foundation for Healthy Communities, enters into any and all
contracts, amendments, renewals, revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshjre,
acting through its Department of Health and Human Services. :

RESOLVED: That the Executwe DlreCtOI‘ o the Vice President of Quality Improvement or the
Secretary / Treasurer for the Foundation for Healthy Communities are hereby authorized on behalf of
this corporation to enter into said contracts with the State, and to execute any and all documents,
agreements, and other mstruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she
may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. Peter Ames is the duly appointed Executive Director
and Kristine Hering is the duly appointed Vice President of Quality Improvement and Stephen Ahnen
is the duly appointed Secretary/Treasurer of the corporation.

3. Thereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force
and effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is
attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate
of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely

i on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation.. To the extent
that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [ have hereunto set my hand as the Sécretal_'x/T reasﬁrer of the
Foundation for Healthy Communities this 30 day of May 2023.

BOARD MEMBER
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e . NEWHAMP-02 GRElSSMAN
g CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE g i

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

. IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
_If SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

prooucer License # 1780862 [ SQuTACT Gabe Reissman
i PHONE FAX
;I'}JSBUlrS‘t;?lJattelo“nal New England TN, Ext): FAZ Mo
Cumberland Foreside, ME 04110 © | k¥ gabe.reissman@hubinternational.com
{NSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC ¥
msures & : Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424
INSURED Now Hampshire Hos.pital Aasoc wsurer B : Twin City Fire Insurance Company 20459
The Foundation for Healthy Communities INSURERC :
Attn: Linda Levesque \NSURER O :
125 Airport Road | i
Concord, NH 03301 NSUREREY:
INSURERF
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: ' REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

s TYPE OF INSURANCE nEr POLICY NUMBER (o | RN I LMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY _ EACH GCCURRENCE s -1,000,000
| CLAIMS-MADE [Z] OCCUR X 08SBAVW2923 6/22/2023 | B/22/2024 | BRMAEE Lo R et | $ 300,000
- . MED EXP {Any one person) 3 10,000
[
I — PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE E) 2,000,000
PouICY 5ES: Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER; 5
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY : | GOMBINED BINGLELMIT | ¢
| lanvauro ) BODILY INJURY (Per person)_| §
OWHNED SCHEDULED
| AUTOS OnLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| §
PROPERTY DAMAGE
| ] K{JRFDPS. ONLY ?‘S‘PMQ {Par accidant) $
5
A | X |umereLarue | X | occur . EACH OCCURRENCE s 2,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE] X 08SBAVW2923 612212023 | 6/22/2024 AéGREGATE % 2,000,000
peo | X | reventions 10,000 s
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION ; : [ER [
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY : STATUIE ER
YIN
s e G 08WECIV5203 612212023 | 6/2212024 [ &/ sooment A 500,000
Bfnceth»inwﬁ EXCLUDED? D NIA - 500,000
andatorylin EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] § '
DLECRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below : ' E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LiMiT | § 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS [ LOCATIONS | VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schadule, may be atiached if more space is requirsd)

Foundation for Healthy Communities is considered a Named Insured for the above mentionad policies.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

s £ NH THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE wWiLL BE DELIVERED IN
tate o ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Department of Health & Human Services ’

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 : AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 4
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Foundation for Healthy Communities
-Mission Statement

The . mission of the Foundation for Healthy
Communities is to build healthier communities
for all by leading partnerships, fostering
collaboration, and creating innovative squtlons
to advance health and health care.

125 Airport Road | Concord, NH 03301 | Phene: (603} 225-0900 | Fax: (603) 225-4346
www. healthynh.org | info@healthynh. org
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Foundation as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accépted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under thosé standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independént of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have. obtained is sufficient and appropriaté to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Manag'ement for the Financial Statements -

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evatuate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation's ability to
continue as a going concern W|thm one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued. :

Maine « New Haompshire » Massachusetts » Connecticut » West Virginia « Arizona

'berrydunn.com
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements '

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance

and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted

auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement

when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud.is higher than for

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissiqns,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is

a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the -aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the ﬁnanmal statements.

In performing an audit in accordance W|th U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we. '

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify'and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the ‘amounts and dasclosures
in the financial statements.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are ‘appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is . -
expressed.

s FEvaluate the approprlateness of accounting pohmes used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

‘o Conclude whether in our judgment there are conditions or events, considered in the.
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation's ability to contlnue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit fi ndlngs and certain internal control related
matters that we identified dunng the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 18,
2022 on our consideration of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of-laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and’
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in conS|der|ng the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

, 3(/\&3 b.(.&rwt.h’(c.ylu«(_f 7%/1;&5 LLl

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 18, 2022
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

Current assets
- Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from affiliate
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Investments
Property and equipment -

Leasehold improvements -
Equipment and furniture

_Less accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS -

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and refated amounts
Due to affiliate
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities and total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
Operating
Internally designated
Total without donor restrictidns
With donor restrictions .

Total net assets '

_Total liabilities and net assets

2021 2020
$ 518,667 $ 345,201
194,633 547,234
141,135 115780
10,650 10,334
865,085 1,018,549
‘1,082,677 _ 962,689 .
1,118 1,118
147,427 _ 147,427
148,545 148,545
148,545 _ 148,145
. 400
$1,947.762 $1.981.638
$ 22995 § 21,119
109,901 91,070
98,369 97,731
8,110 6,949
240,375 _ 216,869
. 1,137,512 923,080
379,316 __489,296
1,616,828 1,412,376
190,659 ._ 352,393
1,707,387 1,764,769
$1.947,762 $1.981,638

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

o)
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Without Donor Restrictions

Internally With Donor
Operating Designated Total Restrictions Total
Revenues :

" Foundation support $ 483,121 % - $ 483121 % - $ 483,121
Program services 1,235,129 - 1,235,129 - 1,235,129
Seminars, meetings, and

workshops 123,729 - 123,729 - 123,729
interest and dividend income 16,943 - 16,943 - ) - 16,943
Net realized and unrealized gain

on investments 155,498 - 155,498 - 155,498
Gifts and donations 5 - . 5 - 5

~Grant support - - - .383,312 383,312
Net assets released from .

restrictions 408,812 . 136,334 545,146 (545,146) -
Net assets released from internally

designated 246,314 (246,314} - - =

Total revenues . 2,669,551 {109,980y 2,558,571 (161,834) 2,397,737
Expenses
Salaries, taxes and benefits 1,589,529 . - 1,589,529 - 1,589,529
Other operating 120,006 - 120,006 - 120,006
Program services . 715818 - 715,818 - 715,818
Seminars, meetings; and '
workshops 29,366 - 29,366 - 29,366 -
Depreciation ' 400 - 400 - 400
Total expenses - 2,455,119 - 2455119 - 2455119
Change in net assets from
operations and total’ o
change in net assets 214,432 (109,980) 104,452 (161,834) (567,382)
Net assets, beginning of year 923,080 489296 1412376 352,393 1,764,769
Net assets, end of year $1,137.512 $_379316 $1516828 $__ 190559 $1,707,387

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOUNDATIQN FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Statement of Activities and C'hanges in Net Assets

Year Endéd December 31, 2020

Without Donor Restrictions ..

Internally With Donor
Operating Designated Total Réstrictions Total
Revenues . . '
Foundation support $ 463,120 $ - § 463,120 % - % 463,120
Program services ' - 3,396,795 - 3,386,795 - 3,398,795
Seminars, meetings, and N
workshops 22,033 - 22,033 - 22,033
Interest and dividend income - 18,519 - 18,519 - 18,519
Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments 93,504 - 93,504 - 93,504
Gifts and donations 196 - 196 - 196
Grant support - - - 567,282 567,282
" Net assets released from ' : '
restrictions ' 338,026 237,213 575,239 (575,239) -
Net assets released from internally ' .
designated 286413 (286,413) - L - =
Total revenues . .. 4618606 (49.200) 4,569,406 (7.957) 4,561,449
Expenses - -
Salaries, taxes and benefits 1,462,230 - 1,482,230 - 1,462,230
Other operating 124,109 - 124,109 - 124,109
Program services 2,865,199 - 2,865,199 - 2,865,199
Seminars, meetings, and . : . '
waorkshops - 33,130 P 33,130 - 33,130
Depreciation 2,747 : - 2,747 - 2,747
Recovery of bad debts (400) - (400) - {400)
" Total expenses 4487015 - - 4487015 : - 4487015
- Change in net assets from
operations and total ' .
change in net assets 131,591 (49,200} 82,391 (7,957) 74,434
Net assets, beginning of year 791,489 _ 538496 1,329,985 360,350 1,690,335
Net assets, end of year $_923080 $_489296 $1.412376 $__352,393 $1.764.769

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-5.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
- Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 202
Cash flows from operating activities -
Change in net assets _ $ (57,382) $ 74,434
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash '
provided {(used) by operating activities

~ Depreciation 400 2,747
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments {155,498) (93,504)
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable - 352,601 (189,782)
Prepaid expenses (316) (724)
Due from affiliate (25,355) (3,250)
Accounts payable 1,876 (121,842)
Accrued payroll and related amounts 18,831 44 B85
‘Due to affiliates ' 638 36,044
Deferred revenue 2,161 (1.064)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities Fid C 137,956 {252.056)
Cash flows from investing activities -
Purchases of investments - (1,890)
Proceeds from sale of investments 35,510 5,255
Net cash provided by investing activities _ 35,510 3,365
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 173,466  (248,691)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 345,201 593,892 -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $_518.667 $_ 345201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-6-
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Organization

[

Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) was organized to conduct various activities relating

to healthcare delivery process improvement, health policy, and the creation of healthy communities,

The Foundation is controlled by New Hampshire Hospital Association {Association) whose purpose is

to assist its members in improving the health status of the people receiving healthcare in New
. Hampshire. ; ' '

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported-amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. -

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
-restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Foundation. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Foundation's management
and the Board of Trustees. i

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
rest_riciion expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. At
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation did not have any funds to be maintained in
perpetuity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting in the statements of cash flows, the Foundation considers all bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

From time-to-time, the Foundation's total cash deposits exceed the federally insured limit.- The .
Foundation has not incurred any losses and does not expect any in the future.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIE-S
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Accounts Receivable’

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings
and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual
~accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts
receivable. Management believes all accounts receivable are collectible. Credit is extended without
collateral.

Investments

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt

securities are measured at fair value in the statements of financial position. Interest and dividends
" and realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets from

operations. . ‘ B - ‘

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit; and overall
market volatility. As-such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
statements of financial position.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful lives of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line
method.

Employee Fringe Benefitg

The Foundation has an "earned time" plan under which each employee earns paid leave for each -
period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacation or illnesses. Hours earned but
not used are vested with the employee and 'may not exceed 30 days at year-end. The Foundation
accrues a liability for such paid leave as it is earned.

Grants and Contributions

Grants awarded and contributions received in advance of expenditures are reported as support
with donor restrictions if they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the grants or
contributions. When a. grant or contribution restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and
changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. If there are unused grant funds at
the time the grant restrictions expire, management seeks authorization from the grantor to retain
the unused grant funds to be used for other unspecified projects. If the Foundation receives
authorization from the grantor, then the Board of Trustees or management internally designates
the use of those funds for future projects. These amounts are released from net assets with donor
restrictions to internally designated net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Grant funds conditional upon submlsswn of documentation of quallfylng expendltures or matchlng
requirements are deemed to be earned and reported as revenues when the Foundation has met
the grant conditions.

The amount of such funds the Foundatlon will ultimately receive depends on the actual scope of .
each program, as well as the ava:labllsty of funds. The ultimate disposition of grant funds is subject .
to audit by the awardlng agencies,

Grant funds awarded for which restrlctlons have been met in the year of award are reported in the.
statement of activities and changes in net assets in program services revenues and expenses.

Contributions of long-lived assets are reported as support for net assets without donor restrictions
unless donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long these long-lived assets must be maintained, the
Foundation reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or ‘acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is a not- fof—prof t corporation as described in Section 501(0)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the Code.

Subséquent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, the
Foundation has considered transactions or events occurring through April 18, 2022 which was the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Foundation regularly monitors liquidity. required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also strlvmg to optimize the investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzi'ng resources ‘available to meet general expenditures ‘over a 12-month
period, the Foundation considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities and general and
administration, as well as the conduct of serwces undertaken to support those activities to be
general expendltures

.In addition to financial assets available to meet general expendlthres over the next 12 months, the
Foundation operates with a balanced budget.and anticipates collecting suﬁ" cient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

As of December 31, 2021, the Foundatlon has workmg capital of $624,710 and average days
{based on,normal expenditures) cash on hand of 210, which includes cash and cash equwalents
~and rnvestments less donor restricted funds.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

-

The following financial assets could readily be available within one year of the statements of
financial position date to meet general expenditure at December 31:

2021 2020
Financial assets g 0
Cash and cash equivalents . % 518,667 $ 345201
Accounts receivable, net 194,633 547,234
Due from affiliate 141,135 115,780
Investments 1,082,677 962,689
Internally designated funds - (379,316) (489,296)
Donor restricted funds {190,559} (352,393)
Financial assets available at year end for current use
to meet general expenditures ! $_ 1367237 $ 1.129.215

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, internally designated net assets represent unused grant funds to
be used for other unspecified projects by management over the next 12 months. The internally
designated net assets are included in cash and cash equwalents and accounts réceivable, net.

3. Investments and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Accountmg Standards Board (FASB) Accountmg Standards Codification (ASC) Topic
820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value
in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset
or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.
FASB ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.

The standard describes three Iévels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access-as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Signifi:ant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices; such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and othér inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reﬂect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

-10 -
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020
The Foundation's investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are considéred
Level 1. S

“The éomposition of investments as of December 31 is set forth in the following table. Investments
are stated at fair value, "

2021 2020
Marketable equity securities . $ 204,492 $ 192,065
Mutua! funds 878,185 770,624

$_1.082677 $__ 962689

4, Net Assets with Donor Restrictiqns

Net assets with donor restrictions of $190,559 and $352,393 consisted of specific grant programs
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The grant programs relate to improvements to
access and the delivery of healthcare services.

5. Conditional Promise to Give

During 2016, the Foundation was awarded a grant from the State of New Hampshire in an amount
not to exceed $1,800,000 to facilitate the expansion of New Hampshire's addiction identification
and overdose prevention activities. Subsequent to the original award, the State of New Hampshire
amended the award amount increasing the grant to an amount not to exceed $4,575,824. Receipt
of the grant and recognition of the related revenue was conditional upon incurring qualifying
expenditures. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Foundation recognized program and
grant support related to this award in the amount of $1,104,493. As of December 31, 2020, the
Foundation had received and recognized the full award. No additional awards occurred during
2021. g

6. Related Party Transactions

The Foundation leases space from the Association on a monthly basis. Rental expense under this
lease for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $41,184 and $41,255, respectively.

The Association provides various accounting, public relation and .janitorial services to the
Foundation. The amount expensed for these services in' 2021 and 2020 was $185,431 and
$173,468, respectively. In addition, the Association bills the Foundation for its allocation of shared
costs. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Foundation owed the Association $98,369 and
$97,731, respectively, for services and products provided by the Association. '

The Association owed the Foundation $141,135 and $115,780 as of December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively, for support allocated to the Foundation. For the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, the Foundation received support from the Assaciation in the amount of $483,121
and $463,120, respectively. '

11 -
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COM_IVIUNITIES
_ Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

7. Retirement Plan

The Foundation participates in the Association's 401(k). profit-sharing plan, which covers
substantially all employees and allows for employee contributions of up to the maximum allowed
under Internal Revenue Service regulations. Employer contributions are discretionary and are
determined annually by the Foundation. Retirement plan expense for 2021 and 2020 was $55,724
and $48,803, respectively.

8. Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and related taxes,
allocated based on the estimated time utilized on programs, and insurance and depreciation,
allocated based on the estimated square footage of the total building.

Expenses by function and natural classification are as follows:

2021 2020
Program services - .

- . Salanes and related taxes $1,337,571 .$1,256,722
Office supplies and other : 508,376 548,910
Occupancy” : 38,449 37,500
Subrecipients - - . 2,068,198
Subcontractors - . 251,845 298,400
Seminars, meetings and workshops - 35,505 36,700
Insurance , ' 3,346 3,138
Depreciation . 320 2,198

Total program services 2175412 4,251,766

General and administrative .

Salaries and related taxes , 251,958 ‘205,508
Office supplies and other _ 3,689 3,194

. Occupancy . 21,749 24,306
Recovery of bad debts - " (400)
Insurance- : 2,231 2,092
Depreciation 80 549
Total general and administrative 279,707 235,249

$2.455119 $4.487.015

-12-
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B) BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Foundation for Healthy Communities

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, 'the financial statements of Foundation for Healthy Communities
(Foundation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2022,

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial ‘statements, we considered the Foundation's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's

. internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control.

A deficiency .in internal control exists when the design or operation. of a control. does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
- misstatement of the Foundation's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material. weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those '
charged with governance. ’

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not desugned to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider fo be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. '

Maine - New Hampshire « Massachusetts « Connecticut. - West Virginia + Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees
- Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those"
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Foundation's internal control or. on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering.the Foundation's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. '

B(/M-? bwmh’(c)’luf_f Foerded, L LC

Manchester, New Hampshire
April 18, 2022
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D) BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
. FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
" FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Truétees '
- Foundation for Healthy Communities

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program
Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited Foundation for Healthy Communities' (Foundation) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of Management and Budget
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for
the year ended December 31, 2021. The Foundation's major federal program is identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In 'our opinion, the Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year -
ended December 31, 2021.

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller. General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under. those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further descrlbed in the Auditor's Responsmlhtles for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report.

We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Foundation's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibih:ties of Management for Compliance
; .

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to.above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements appllcable to the
Foundatlon s federal programs.

Maine = New Hampshire « Massochusetts « Connecticut « West Virginia « Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Trustees
Foundation for Healthy Communities

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are.to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an.
opinion on the Foundation’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may

- involve collusion, forgery; intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Foundation’s compliance with the requirements
of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government-
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Foundation's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

. circumstances. ‘ o '

o Obtain an understanding of the Foundation's internal control over compliance relevant to.the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. ’

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters;
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal contro! over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance '

A deficiency in iriternal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in-internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies; in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Board of Trustees
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for thé purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report’is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the Foundation as of and for the year ended December
31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2022, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance, and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
- derived from and relates- directly to the underlying accounting and other records used-to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is-fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

 Bessy Diernn M Vel | Fundes, L4C

Manchester, New Hampshire
© April 18, 2022
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Pass-‘Through

-Federal Entity
AL Identifying Federal
Federal Program Number -Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-through programs:
State of New Hampshire Department of -
Health and Human Services
Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Puﬁlic _ -
Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) 05-95-90-
Aligned Cooperative Agreements A 93.074 902510-2239 $ 745459
| - 05-95-90-
Small Rural Hospital Improvement Grant Program 93.301  901010-2219 123,772
‘ 05-95-90-
State Rural Hospital Flexibility Program 93.241- 902010-2218 67,797
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness 6U3REP20064
Program 93.889 9-01-00 2,000
Cooperative Agreement to Support Navigators in
. Federally-facilitated and State Partnershlp NAVACA21040
" Marketplaces 93.332 0-01-00 __- 16,288

Total expenditures of federal awards

$__ 955,316

-18 -



DocuSign Envelope I0; §9267DAB-267D-40EC-95DA-CAI97FEQIF12

FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended December 31, 2021

1. Basis of Presentation -

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) includes the federal
.grant activity of Foundation for Healthy Communities (Foundation) under programs of the federal
government. for the year ended December 31, 2021. The information in the Schedule is
presented in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a portion of the operations of the
Foundation, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets or cash flows of the Foundation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported_in the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate.

The Foundation has elected not to use the 10~ percent de m|n|m|s indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
" Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section |. - Summary 6f Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: : Unmaodified
-Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no -
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not : :
considered to be material weaknesses? yes X_ none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements = _
noted? _ yes X__ no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X __ no
Significant deficiency{ies) identified not _
considered to.be material weaknesses? _ yes X none reported
- Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs; Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with-
2 CFR 200.516(a)7? - o yes X no
Identification of Major Programs
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
93.074 - Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Public Health
- Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Aligned Cooperative
Agreements ;
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: : : $750,000
- Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ; X yeé - no

Section ll. - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None noted .

Section lIl. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted
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FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings-
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section . - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported
.'in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

None noted .

Section II. - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted
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President, New Hampshire Hospital Association
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President & CEQ, Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital

Director, Healthcare Ma négement, Anthem

President & CEQ, Lake Sunapee Visiting Nurses Association -
Dean, UNH Manchester
CMO, Cheshire Medical Center

Sr. Director of Behavioral and Community Health
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Executive Director, New Hampshire Food Bank

President and CEOQ, Ri\;erbenc_i Community Menta;rHealth Center
President and CEQ, New L'ondc.:n Hospita!

CEOQ, Cottage Hospital

President & CEC, Southern New Hampshire Health

President & CEO, Huggins Hospital -

CEQ, Parkland Medicat Cent';er

Strategic Business Leac;, NH, Harvard Pilgrim Health Care

CMIO, Catholic Medical Center

President and CEQ, New Hampshire Cémmunity Loan Fund -
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Peter T. Ames
HEALTH CARE LEADERSHIP | QUALITY IMPROVEMENT | PARTNERSHIP DEVELOPMENT

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Executive Director, Foundation for Healthy Communities, Concord, NH
2017-Current
» Provide overall management of the staff team, strategic vision, and operations for the
" organization.
* Develop community partnersh|ps with health care leaders and stakeholders to develop
collaborative opportunities to advance the mission.
» Direct the implementation of quality improvement activities to support health care partners
through organizational programs, '
» Advance relationships with funding partners and facilitate all grant procurement and compliance
activities.
» Work in partnership with the New Hampshire Hospital Association to improve care and
community health for health systems.
+ Manage and support the Board of Trustees.

Senlor Director, State Health Systems, Amerlcan Cancer Soaety, Bedford, NH
2013 to 2017
o Led regional New England team of Health Managers in partnership development to promote
quality improvement and health promotion.
Strategically developed public health intervention design and implementation.
Secured revenue through consultative sales model with key businesses and high net worth
individuals.

Vice.President of Health Imtlatlves, Amerlcan Cancer Society, Bedford, NH
2010 to 2013
e Managed patient programs, state budget, and service dellvery in New Hampshire.
« Built strategic partnerships with health care and business leaders.
¢ Supported Development goals by identifying and recruiting prospects, sollcmng sponsorships
from major accounts, managing relations of individuals and corporate donors. ;

Director of Government Relations and Advocacy, American Cancer Society, Bedford, NH
2005 to 2010

» {obbied federal and state lawmakers and state department officials on cancer policy.

» Managed department staff, contracted professionals, and oversaw department budget.

« Spokesperson for the American Cancer Society to the media, public, coalitions, and lawmakers.

Office of Congressman Jeb Bradley, Washington, DC

Legislative Assistant

2003-2005
» Advisor to Congressman on health care policy, providing research, analysis, and issue briefs.
« Drafted correspondence to Members of Congress, advocacy organizations, and constituents.
» _ Planned and coordinated conferences, fundraising events, and meetings.

COMMUNITY INVOLOVEMENT
+« Member, Recreation Commission, Town of Litchfield
e Volunteer, Parent Teacher Organization, Litchfield School District

EDUCATION and TRAINING
Master of Public Health in Health Promotion, George Washington University, Washington DC, 2004
Bachelor of Science in Health Management and Policy, University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, 2001
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Contractor Name
Key Personnel -

Job Title

Name Salary Amount Paid
. from this Contract
Peter Ames Executive Director $10,000




